
Agenda Meeting Location: 
City Council Chambers 

General Obligation Bond 200 W. Jefferson St. 
Phoenix, Arizona 85003 

Executive Committee 

Monday, November 14, 2022 9:00 AM City Council Chambers 

A quorum of each of the General Obligation Bond subcommittees may be present at this 
meeting, but no discussion or action of any of the subcommittees will occur during the 
meeting. Any individual member of a subcommittee attending or speaking at the meeting, 
except the subcommittee chair as a member of the Executive Committee, will do so in 
their individual capacity and not as a member of their respective subcommittee. 

OPTIONS TO ACCESS THIS MEETING 

Virtual Request to speak at a meeting: 

- Register online by visiting http://www.phoenix.gov/bond/meetings at least 2 hours prior to
the start of this meeting. Then, click on this link at the time of the meeting and join the Webex
to speak: 

https://phoenixpublicmeetings.webex.com/phoenixpublicmeetings/onstage/g.php?MTID=e236e437bbe
602a3a6761a894aafd6cff 

- Register via telephone at 602-262-6001 at least 2 hours prior to the start of this meeting.
Then, use the call-in phone number and Meeting ID listed below at the time of the meeting to
call-in and speak.

In-Person Requests to speak at a meeting: 

- Register in person at a kiosk located at the City Council Chambers, 200 W. Jefferson St.,
Phoenix, Arizona, 85003. Arrive 1 hour prior to the start of this meeting. Depending on
seating availability, residents will attend and speak from the Upper Chambers or Lower
Chambers.

- Individuals should arrive early, 1 hour prior to the start of the meeting to submit an in-person
request to speak before the item is called. After the item is called, requests to speak will not be
accepted.

At the time of the meeting: 

- Watch the meeting live streamed on phoenix.gov or Phoenix Channel 11 on Cox Cable, or
using the Webex link provided above.

- Call-in to listen to the meeting. Dial 602-666-0783 and Enter Meeting ID 2493 479 3008# (for
English) or 2496 133 9069# (for Spanish). Press # again when prompted for attendee ID.

- Watch the meeting in-person from the Upper Chambers or Lower Chambers depending on
seating availability.

1

http://www.phoenix.gov/bond/meetings
https://phoenixpublicmeetings.webex.com/phoenixpublicmeetings/onstage/g.php?MTID=e236e437bbe602a3a6761a894aafd6cff
https://phoenixpublicmeetings.webex.com/phoenixpublicmeetings/onstage/g.php?MTID=e236e437bbe602a3a6761a894aafd6cff


Agenda Meeting Location: 
City Council Chambers 

General Obligation Bond 200 W. Jefferson St. 
Phoenix, Arizona 85003 

Executive Committee 

Monday, November 14, 2022 9:00 AM City Council Chambers 

Para nuestros residentes de habla hispana: 

- Para registrarse para hablar en español, llame al 602-262-6001 al menos 2 horas antes
del inicio de esta reunión e indique el número del tema. El día de la reunión, llame al 602-
666-0783 e ingrese el número de identificación de la reunión 2496 133 9069#. El intérprete le
indicará cuando sea su turno de hablar.

- Para solamente escuchar la reunión en español, llame a este mismo número el día de la
reunión (602-666-0783); ingrese el número de identificación de la reunión 2496 133 9069#. Se
proporciona interpretación simultánea para nuestros residentes durante todas las reuniones.

- Para asistir a la reunión en persona, vaya a las Cámaras del Concejo Municipal de Phoenix
ubicadas en 200 W. Jefferson Street, Phoenix, AZ 85003. Llegue 1 hora antes del comienzo de
la reunión. Si desea hablar, regístrese electrónicamente en uno de los quioscos, antes de que
comience el tema. Una vez que se comience a discutir el tema, no se aceptarán nuevas
solicitudes para hablar Dependiendo de cuantos asientos haya disponibles, usted podría ser
sentado en la parte superior de las cámaras, o en el piso de abajo de las cámaras.

2



Agenda Meeting Location: 
City Council Chambers 

General Obligation Bond 200 W. Jefferson St. 
Phoenix, Arizona 85003 

Executive Committee 

Monday, November 14, 2022 9:00 AM City Council Chambers 

MINUTES OF MEETINGS 

1. Minutes of the General Obligation Bond Executive Committee

This item transmits the minutes of the General Obligation Bond Executive
Committee meeting from November 7, 2022, for review, correction or approval by
the Committee.

THIS ITEM IS FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION 

2. Introductory Remarks

Introductory remarks by the Committee Chair.

3. General Obligation Bond Program Recommendations

The Executive Committee will discuss potential General Obligation Bond projects
and may discuss and approve Executive Committee recommendations to the
Phoenix City Council.

THIS ITEM IS FOR INFORMATION, PUBLIC COMMENT, DISCUSSION AND
POSSIBLE ACTION

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

ADJOURN 

3



Agenda Meeting Location: 
City Council Chambers 

General Obligation Bond 200 W. Jefferson St. 
Phoenix, Arizona 85003 

Executive Committee 

Monday, November 14, 2022 9:00 AM City Council Chambers 

For reasonable accommodations, please contact Genevieve Siri at 602-495-7320 a 
minimum of two business days prior to the meeting. 7-1-1 Friendly. 

Persons paid to lobby on behalf of persons or organizations other than themselves must 
register with the City Clerk prior to lobbying or within five business days thereafter, and 
must register annually to continue lobbying. If you have any questions about registration 
or whether or not you must register, please contact the City Clerk’s Office at 602-534-
0490. 

4



City of Phoenix 

General Obligation Bond Executive Committee 

Summary Minutes 

Monday, November 7, 2022 

City Council Chambers 

200 W. Jefferson St. 

Phoenix, Ariz. 

Committee Members Present Committee Members Absent 

Ms. Sharon Harper, Chair  Mr. Ron Butler 

Dr. LeeAnn Aguilar-Lawlor, Vice Chair    Ms. Pam Kehaly 

Ms. Jennifer Grandahl (Virtual) 

Mr. Rick Naimark 

Mr. Steve Beuerlein 

Ms. Diana Yazzie Devine 

Mr. Abraham James 

Mr. David Martin 

Ms. Devney Preuss 

Mr. Robin Reed* 

Ms. Ginger Torres 

Hon. Mary Rose Wilcox 

CALL TO ORDER 

Chair Harper called the meeting to order at 9:01 a.m. with Vice Chair Aguilar-Lawlor and 

committee members Jennifer Grandahl, Rick Naimark, Steve Beuerlein, Diana Yazzie 

Devine, Abraham James, David Martin, Devney Preuss, Ginger Torres and Mary Rose 

Wilcox present. 

*Committee member Reed joined the meeting at 9:03 a.m.

1. Minutes of the General Obligation Bond Executive Committee

Committee member Beuerlein made a motion to approve the minutes of the October

31, 2022 General Obligation Bond (GO) Executive Committee meeting. Committee

member James seconded the motion which passed 11-0, with member Martin not

being present at the time of the vote.

2. Introductory Remarks

Chair Harper stated that the Executive Committee adopted the City Manager’s

recommended targets to achieve a $500 million program limit.  She further stated

5



that two subcommittee targets were achieved in the last meeting, and that the 

process would continue today with three additional subcommittee meetings including 

Housing, Human Services and Homelessness, Public Safety and Parks & 

Recreation.   

3. GO Bond Program Recommendations

Chair Harper recapped the process that the committee would be following which was 

that staff would be tracing the committee’s deliberations and would be showing the 

impact of the changes live, during the meeting, and that she would be looking for an 

informal consensus on a clear structure before making any motions and taking 

votes.  She then stated that she would like to begin the process with the 

recommendations from the Housing, Human Services and Homelessness 

subcommittee. 

Member Naimark asked for clarification on the adopted targets from the last 

meeting.  Chair Harper responded that the Executive Committee adopted to work 

within the $500 million target, and that there would also be some flexibility with 

subsequent deliberations. 

Member Yazzie Devine thanked the Housing, Human Services and Homelessness 

Subcommittee members and the City staff that provided a significant volume of 

requested information and financial documents. She further generally stated that the 

community input for program needs exceeded subcommittee’s target, and that 

providing needed housing and other community based human services was a 

difficult task. She noted the additional challenge of ongoing operating costs 

associated with shelter projects, and additional capital funding available, should be 

taken into account in formulating a recommendation within the $500 million program. 

She requested that a higher allocation be considered for the Housing, Human 

Services and Homelessness program, and urged the City to seek alternative funding 

for any unfunded recommendations.  Deputy City Manager Gina Montes then 

presented information on $88.9 million in alternative sources of funding for Housing, 

Human Services and Homelessness projects, primarily from American Rescue Plan 

Act (ARPA) funding, including $70.9 million set aside for shelter and capital needs to 

address homelessness.  Chair Harper then opened the floor for discussion. 

Member Wilcox made a motion to approve Housing, Human Services and 

Homelessness Subcommittee project numbers 1-6, with the exception of project 

number 4 (instead utilizing alternative funding), shown on the screen as follows: #1 - 

Affordable Housing Property Preservation - Phase 1 for $33,010,113, #2 - Cesar 

Chavez Senior Center for $5,707,191, #3 - McDowell Senior Center Renovation for 

$1,765,118, #4 - Acquisition/Renovation of Property for Shelter for $0 (zero dollars), 

#5 - Choice Neighborhoods Housing Development Gap Funding for $21,217,878, 

and #6 - Innovation in Affordable Housing Program for $1,000,000. The motion was 

6



 

 

seconded by member James.  Chair Harper then opened the motion up for 

discussion.  Member Preuss asked if there were alternative funding sources for 

project #7 - Affordable Housing Development Gap Financing, and project #8 - 

Expansion of the Parsons Center for Health and Wellness?  Ms. Montes replied that 

there was alternative funding identified for project #7 through ARPA, and that staff 

was exploring other financing options for the Parsons Center.  Member Naimark 

asked how much alternative funding was available for the Affordable Housing 

Development Gap Financing project?  Ms. Montes replied that there was 

$12,000,000 available.  Mr. Naimark then asked if the Housing, Human Services and 

Homelessness Subcommittee was aware that the alternative funding was available 

when the submitted their recommendations to the Executive Committee? Member 

Yazzie Devine stated that the subcommittee was aware of the alternative funding, 

but wished to put a spotlight on homelessness. Member Torres asked if the 

Executive Committee was aware of two letters of support from Senator Sinema and 

Congressman Gallego for project #8, the Parsons Center Project?  Budget Director 

Amber Williamson responded that the Executive Committee members were provided 

with the two letters of support.  Member Wilcox advocated applying any remaining 

funding to the Parsons Center. The motion passed 12-0. 

 

Member Beuerlein presented the findings of Public Safety Subcommittee.  He stated 

that there were still public safety projects from the 2006 Bond programs that were 

never completed, and that the needs were so great in the past, under Interim Mayor 

Thelda Williams, a bond program was considered just for Police and Fire.  He then 

stated that public safety needs account for 70% of most municipal budgets, and that 

there is only 27% of this proposed bond program allocated to public safety, which he 

felt was inadequate.  He further stated that if the bond program were to exceed $500 

million, he would expect public safety to be well represented.  City Manager Jeff 

Barton confirmed that in 2019, Interim Mayor Thelda Williams convened a Public 

Safety Bond committee, noting that $350 million was expected to be needed for a 

new Police Headquarters facility.  Mr. Barton stated that consideration of that bond 

program was paused due to COVID, and in the interim, the City opportunistically 

acquired the 100 W. Washington (former Wells Fargo) building for use as a Police 

Headquarters facility. The City Council approved an excise tax supported municipal 

bond sale for the renovation, thereby avoiding the need to include that project in this 

$500 million GO bond program proposal.  Mr. Barton further stated that if the total 

amount of $198 million for the acquisition and renovation were to be summed with 

the $500 million program, the current Public Safety target amount of $132.5 million 

plus the $198 million would equal 47% for Public Safety.  With regards to Fire Safety 

needs, Mr. Barton stated that the City would be hiring additional firefighters, and 

summarized a long-term strategy of delivering 20 fire stations over 20 years, 

including the associated firefighter staffing. Executive Assistant Fire Chief Scott 

Walker and Assistant City Manager Lori Bays then presented an overview of the Fire 

Safety additions being proposed to the City Council outside of the GO Bond 

Program. 

 

7



 

 

Mr. Barton noted an option to scale the Cactus Park Precinct & Northern Command 

Center Relocation project, phasing it over two bond programs. Ms. Bays relayed that 

acquiring land for the full project in this bond program, but only constructing the 

Cactus Park Precinct replacement, could result in a $12 million savings. The 

Northern Command Center replacement construction could be accomplished in a 

future bond program. Member Reed noted that these savings could fund items #6 

and 8, Police Property Management Warehouse Renovation and Maryvale Police 

Precinct Renovations. Member Naimark asked for input from Police staff. Assistant 

Chief Kurtenbach indicated support. 

 

Member Martin made a motion to approve the following Public Safety projects 

totaling $132,270,568: #1 Fire Station 7 for $21,370,986, #2 Fire Station 13 for 

$21,715,423, #3 Fire Station 15 for $21,370,986, #4 Cactus Park Precinct 

Relocation [excluding Northern Command Center Relocation but including 

associated land acquisition] for $37,274,003, #5 Fire Station 51 for $18,545,514, #6 

Police Property Management Warehouse Renovation for $9,012,264, and #8 

Maryvale Police Precinct Renovations for $2,981,392.  The motion was seconded by 

Mr. Naimark and was passed by a vote of 12-0. 

 

Chair Harper then asked that Parks & Recreation Subcommittee to proceed with 

their presentation and recommendation.   

 

Member Wilcox thanked staff and said that the Parks & Recreation Subcommittee’s 

main consideration was equity, and given the current target level, was concerned 

that distribution was not sufficiently equitable. Member Wilcox recommended that 

the Grant Park Bath House renovation be moved to the bottom of the list, and that 

Margaret T Hance Park improvements be moved to number 10. Member Wilcox then 

made a motion to approve the following Parks & Recreation projects totaling 

$68,424,249: #1 Citywide Funding for Parks Minor Capital Projects for $1,500,000, 

#2 Esteban Park Recreation Center for $5,000,000, #3 South Mountain Roadway 

Safety Enhancements for $10,686,522, #4 Harmon Park Regional Pool and Three 

Splash Pad Sites for $12,774,702, #5 Maryvale Park Regional Pool and Two Splash 

Pads Sites for $14,350,706, #6 Estrella Civic Space - Phase 1 for $12,342,949, #7 

Desert View Civic Space - Phase 1 for $8,375,338, #8 Telephone Pioneers of 

America Park Recreation Center Improvements for $2,202,033, and #9 Mountain 

View Community Center Sports Complex Improvements for $1,191,999.  The motion 

was seconded by Member James with Member Preuss disclosed a conflict, being on 

the private sector fundraising committee for Margaret T Hance Park, recusing herself 

from the vote. Mr. Barton informed the Executive Committee that the total amount in 

the Parks & Recreation Subcommittee’s total motion amount was over the 

$64,000,000 target amount by approximately $4,400,000, but that was acceptable 

because the Subcommittees adopted their targets with flexibility. Member Wilcox 

modified the motion to accept reduction of the $68,424,249 amount in the future, if 

alternative replacement funding or scope reductions could be identified. The 

8



 

 

modified motion was seconded by member James. The modified motion passed by 

a vote of 11-0, with Member Preuss abstaining. 

 

Member Ginger Torres then presented Environment & Sustainability Subcommittee 

recommendations.  She stated that her subcommittee met the City Managers’ target 

amount but felt that the amount was woefully inadequate to address the 

environmental issues that are facing the City today including climate change and 

extreme heat, and that additionally the target amount of $26 million was only 5% of 

the total $500 million proposed GO Bond program.  She requested that the 

Environment & Sustainability Subcommittee allocation be increased an additional 

$15 million above the $26 million already allocated.  Deputy City Manager Karen 

Peters stated that there were other City operating funding sources, as well as ARPA 

funding sources to address tree replacement and heat mitigation projects.  Mr. 

Barton stated that there was approximately $11 million of ARPA funding available 

that included $5 million for trees, $3 million for home weatherization projects that 

would be utilized by underserved areas of the community, and $2.9 million for shade 

structures.  Member James suggested that the Federal government will possibly 

make more funding available to address environmental issues.  Member Torres 

stated that she did not want to rely, and or wait the for the Federal government for 

assistance. Chair Harper stated that all subcommittees advocated for additional 

funding, but she did not support increasing the Environment & Sustainability 

Subcommittees’ allocation at this point in the process.  Member Grandahl stated that 

the Environment & Sustainability Subcommittees’ proposed amount of $25.1 million 

was $900,000 under the City Managers’ $26.0 million recommended target and 

suggested adding the $900,000 back into the Subcommittees’ allocation.  Ms. Peters 

suggested that the Energy and Water Efficiency and Renewable Energy Upgrades 

at City Facilities project could be increased from $13.5 million to $14.0 million, and 

that the Heat Resiliency Project could be increased from $7.3 million to $7.7 million.   

 

Member Beuerlein made a motion to approve the following Environment & 

Sustainability projects for a total of $26,000,000 as follows: #1 Energy and Water 

Efficiency and Renewable Energy Upgrades at City Facilities for $14,000,000, #2 

Heat Resiliency for $7,700,000, #3 City Brownfields Redevelopment Projects for 

$3,000,000, and #4 City Facility Vehicle Electrification Stations for $1,300,000.  The 

motion passed with a vote of 11-0, with Member Martin abstaining. 

 

Member Grandahl left the meeting at 10:40 a.m.  

 

Chair Harper opened the floor for public comment.  

 

Nicole Rodriguez felt that pavement maintenance projects should not be included in 

the GO Bond program. She supported the Vision Zero project.   

 

James Teeple supported full funding for Hance Park and renovation of the Central 

Avenue bridge. 

9



 

 

 

Brenda Montoya spoke in support of the Estrella Civic Space project. 

  

Dan Penton spoke against Hance Park and in support of the Estrella Civic Space 

project. 

 

Joseph Specter spoke in support of full funding for all Arts & Culture projects that are 

in vital need of capital maintenance. 

 

Kristine Morris spoke in support of the Estrella Civic Space project. 

 

Jami Kozemczak in support of all Arts & Culture projects including the Symphony 

Hall Theatrical Venue Improvements project. 

 

Sandra Oviedo spoke in support of the Vision Zero Implementation project and the 

Equity Based Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility Implementation project. 

 

Jessyca Leach spoke in support of the Expansion of The Parsons Center for Health 

and Wellness project. 

 

Chel’sea Ryan spoke in support of the Expansion of The Parsons Center for Health 

and Wellness project. 

 

Cyndy Gaughan spoke in support of Arts & Culture Projects, ASU Tech facilities 

projects, Historic Renovation projects, and the Hance Park Improvements project. 

 

Sandra Bassett spoke in support of full funding for all Arts & Culture projects and 

advocated for equitable funding allocation. 

 

Mark Mettes spoke in support of full funding for all Arts & Culture projects. 

 

Ryan Boyd stated he was concerned with the prioritization process and spoke in 

support of the Vision Zero Implementation project and the Equity Based 

Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility Implementation project. 

  

Sarah Gaumont spoke in support the renovation of the Phoenix Center for the Arts.  

 

Joseph Erlichman spoke in support of the Arizona Jewish Historical Society 

Renovation & Expansion Project including the Holocaust Education Center. 

 

Nora Ulloa spoke in support of the Estrella Civic Space and Library project. 

 

Matthew Schaefer spoke in support of the Phoenix Theater Company ADA 

Accessibility project. 

10



 

 

 

Lisa Perez spoke in support of the Estrella Civic Space project. 

 

Chaz Salazar spoke in support of the Vision Zero Implementation project and the 

Equity Based Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility Implementation project.  

 

Laura Earl spoke in support of the Estrella Civic Space project. 

 

Caroline Van Slyke spoke in favor of Hance Park Improvements  

 

Vania Guevara spoke in support of the Vision Zero Implementation project and the 

Equity Based Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility Implementation project. 

 

Taylor Earl spoke in support of the Estrella Civic Space project. 

 

Kirin Goff spoke in support of the Vision Zero Implementation project and the Equity 

Based Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility Implementation project. 

 

Kate Wells spoke in support of the Children’s Museum of Phoenix project. 

 

Karen Gresham spoke in support full funding for the Vision Zero Implementation 

project and the Equity Based Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility 

Implementation project. 

 

Kenneth Steel spoke in support full funding for the Vision Zero Implementation 

project and the Equity Based Transportation Mobility - T2050 Mobility 

Implementation project. 

 

 

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS 

 

     There were no future agenda items. 

 

 

ADJOURNMENT 

Chair Harper adjourned the meeting at 11:18 a.m. 

 

 

 

 

11



To: General Obligation Bond Committee Date: November 8, 2022  

From: Amber Williamson 
Budget and Research Director 

Subject: RESIDENT 2023 GO BOND PROGRAM COMMENTS  

The Budget and Research Department compiles community feedback on the General 
Obligation Bond Program to provide to the GO Bond Committees and City Leadership. 
Attachment A transmits a summary of all community feedback received from July 1 to 
November 7, 2022.  

Budget and Research staff maintains an e-mail address and a voice mailbox for 
residents to provide comments on the GO Bond Program. Attachment B transmits a 
summary of these comments from October 25 to November 7, 2022, as well as social 
media statistics. 

Submissions to the 2023 GOPHX tool from July 1 through October 31, 2022 are 
available online. There were no Spanish submissions. 

At www.phoenix.gov/bond, residents can access the 2023 GO Bond Committee 
Reports, including the electronic version of this report, and other GO Bond Program 
information.  

Residents can view the following: 

- The 2023 GO Bond Informational Guide in English and Spanish
- Information on how to provide feedback 
- Videos of completed GO Bond Committee Meetings

12



Below is a summary of the comments received directly by the Budget and Research 
Department by phone and email, captured in minutes from GO Bond Committee 
meetings held through October 31, 2022, and through the GOPHX tool. 

Comments for funding/support of GO Bond projects: 
 (101) in support of funding for new parks or park improvements, including (52) for

the Estrella Village Civic Space, (23) for the Margaret T Hance Park Improvement
Project, (10) for a recreation center at Esteban Park, and (6) for additional lighting at
Pierce Park

 (75) to fund improvements to the Laveen Area Conveyance Channel
 (72) for funding new or renovated police stations, including (6) for the Cactus Park

Precinct and (3) for the Maryvale Precinct
 (63) for funding new or renovated fire stations, including (23) for Fire Station 74 and

(6) for a fire station in the Sunnyslope area
 (47) in support of funding for Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) improvements for

Phoenix Theatre
 (47) funding for street maintenance and roadway safety improvements, including (8)

for traffic mitigation measures in the Roosevelt Historic District, (7) for Vision Zero
Implementation, (6) in support of prioritized funding for speed mitigation
infrastructure in Sunnyslope near Cave Creek Road, and (5) for Equity Based
Transportation Mobility, and (2) for more sidewalks

 (41) to fund improvement and expansion of the Arizona Science Center
 (38) additional funding for heat resiliency and mitigation projects, including (17)

requesting more shade structures and shade trees and (2) requesting additional
funding to install water stations at bus stops

 (35) in support of funding for new and renovated libraries, including (13) for the new
library at Desert View Civic Space on Deer Valley Road, (6) for a new library in
Sunnyslope, and (3) for the new library at Estrella Civic Space

 (32) additional funding to shelter individuals experiencing homelessness, permanent
and supportive housing, and supportive services

 (27) to fund repairs at Phoenix Center for the Arts
 (23) to fund Expansion of The Parsons Center for Health and Wellness
 (22) to fund the Arizona State University Health Science and Technology Center
 (22) funding for historic preservation projects, with (1) for Heritage Square

Restoration, (1) for the Warehouse and Threatened Buildings Program, and (1) for
Orpheum Theatre Exterior Renovations

 (21) additional funding for affordable housing projects, including (1) more affordable
housing options in the Garfield neighborhood

 (15) to provide funding to the Arizona Jewish Historical Society
 (14) funding for equipment and vehicle replacement, including (8) for fire apparatus

and emergency vehicles

ATTACHMENT A

SUMMARY OF COMMUNITY FEEDBACK 
PROPOSED 2023 GENERAL OBLIGATION (GO) BOND PROGRAM 

JULY 1, 2022 – NOVEMBER 7, 2022 

13



 (13) to fund the Children’s Museum of Phoenix Expansion 
 (12) funding for storm drainage and flood control projects, including (2) supporting 

the implementation of bioswales and (1) for the Hohokam Drainage Program 
 (11) additional funding for public transportation and bus stops, including (3) for more 

transit in the West and Southwest areas of the City 
 (10) to fund Herberger Theater Center Theatrical Improvements 
 (10) in support of funding for the Valley Youth Theatre Permanent Home Project 
 (8) funding for Cultural Facilities Critical Equipment Replacements  
 (7) additional funding for improvements to the Sunnyslope Community Center 
 (7) funding for repairs at Santa Fe Springs Apartments 
 (7) additional funding to support first responders and overall public safety 
 (7) in support of the GO Bond Program 
 (6) funding for City pools, splash pads, and aquatic centers 
 (6) funding for Rio Reimagined Land Acquisition 
 (5) additional funding for greening efforts on lower Grand Avenue 
 (5) in support of electric vehicle charging infrastructure 
 (5) additional funding for solar panel installation, with (2) specifically requesting them 

at non-profit facilities and low-income residences 
 (5) for new or renovated Pickleball courts at City parks 
 (5) in support of funding all prioritized and future Arts & Culture capital needs 
 (5) funding for a new facility for the Garment League 
 (4) to fund science and technology initiatives, including (1) for funding to support the 

partnership between the Biomedical Research Institute of Arizona (BRIA) and 
Pathfinder 

 (4) additional funding for the Community Assistance Program and mental health 
response to calls for service 

 (3) funding for the South Phoenix Youth Center 
 (3) in support of funding for deferred maintenance of city facilities 
 (3) funding to build new skate parks 
 (3) funding for water conservation and reclamation efforts 
 (3) funding for bike-friendly initiatives and bikeway renovations 
 (3) funding for improvements to the South Mountain Park Roadway 
 (3) funding for Environment and Sustainability projects 
 (3) in support of Symphony Hall Theatrical Venue Improvements 
 (2) funding for irrigation at Old Cross Cut Canal Park 
 (2) funding for educational services 
 (2) in support of the Latino Cultural Center 
 (2) funding for Pueblo Grande Museum and Archaeologic Park Improvements 
 (2) to fund the McDowell Senior Center Renovation  
 (2) for ADA improvements to City facilities 
 (2) in support of funding for Cesar Chavez Senior Center 
 (2) funding for new and renovated tennis courts 
 (2) funding to improve connectivity along the Rio Salado between South Phoenix 

and Downtown 

14



 (1) funding for an Asian Cultural Center 
 (1) funding for animal control facility improvements 
 (1) funding for indoor play spaces 
 (1) funding to pave the wash located north of John Jacobs Elementary School 
 (1) funding for a Resilient Energy Hub 
 (1) funding to build a Cold War Monument at Steele Indian School Park 
 (1) funding for improvements to recycling facilities 
 (1) funding for the 27th Avenue Resource Innovation Center 
 (1) funding to expand the Tres Rios Wetlands 
 (1) funding for improvements to the 91st Avenue Wastewater Treatment Plant 
 (1) funding for a community center in the Metrocenter area 
 (1) for Rio Salado Embankment Erosion Control 
 (1) funding for Edison Eastlake development gap funding 
 (1) funding for City Services Property Improvements 
 (1) funding for citywide brownfields redevelopment projects 
 (1) future funding for the University of Arizona Center for Advanced Molecular and 

Immunological Therapies (CAMI) 
 (1) funding for the Spark Area Land Acquisition 
 (1) funding for all future capital needs 
 (1) funding to renovate the Historic Steele Indian School Dining Hall 
 (1) in support of Equipment Replacement for Energy Savings 
 (1) funding to improve parking for hiking trails at the Reach 11 Recreation Area 
 
Comments for reduced funding/opposition of GO Bond Projects: 
 (26) opposed funding of police facilities and equipment, including (6) against police 

stations, (5) opposed to the Police Driver Training Track, (2) opposed to the Police 
Property Management Warehouse Renovation, and (2) against funding for vehicles  

 (9) opposed funding for the Fuel and Oil Tank Replacement Project and projects 
using fossil fuels 

 (6) opposed funding for Parks & Recreation, including (1) opposed to funding for 
more pools, (1) against funding golf courses, (1) against funding for South Mountain 
Park Roadway, and (1) opposed to funding for the Margaret T Hance Park 
Improvement Project 

 (2) opposed to current Latino Cultural Center project plan 
 (1) opposed funding for Orpheum Theatre and Tovrea Castle preservation projects 
 (1) requesting reduced funding for Rio Reimagined 
 (1) opposed funding for private residential historic preservation projects 
 (1) opposed funding for Neighborhood Traffic Mitigation 
 (1) opposed funding for Choice Neighborhoods Housing Development Gap Funding 
 (1) opposed funding for the Yucca Branch Library Expansion 
 (1) opposed funding for planting trees that cannot be maintained 
 (1) opposed funding for City Service Center Property Improvements 
 (1) opposed funding for the Pavement Maintenance Supplement 
 (1) opposed funding for more pickleball facilities 

15



 (1) opposed the proposed GO Bond subcommittee recommendations 
 
General comments about the GO Bond: 
 (1) stated the prioritization process was confusing 
 (1) expressed concern with the proposed GO Bond amount of $500 million 
 (1) stated future capital needs and prioritized needs should be switched 
 (1) requested increased GO Bond Program outreach 
 (1) recommended a 50-year retrospective map be created showing ethnic 

distribution, if a map of project distribution by district were to be produced  
 

16



VOICEMAIL, ELECTRONIC, AND WRITTEN GO BOND PROGRAM COMMENTS  
OCTOBER 25, 2022 – NOVEMBER 7, 2022, AND SOCIAL MEDIA STATISTICS  

Emails 

1. Lisa Bernstein sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and emergency medical
technician (EMT) station in west Ahwatukee.

2. Philip Hoffman sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in
Ahwatukee, west of 17th Avenue, due to continued growth in the area.

3. Barbara Joan Sneddon sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in
west Ahwatukee.

4. Gary Walker sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee due to continued growth in the area.

5. Kevin Ricketts sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee due to continued growth in the area.

6. Robert Wierschem sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station near
Ahwatukee Foothills Club West.

7. George Lemley sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee.

8. Beth Gallagher sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee.

9. Brittany Wittenberg Camp sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station
in west Ahwatukee.

10. Brad Gronek sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee.

11. Susan Lawson sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee due to continued growth in the area.

12. Vicky Glover sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee due to continued growth in the area.

13. Matthew Shadle sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee due to continued growth in the area.

14. Kristen Shadle sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee due to continued growth in the area.

15. Gail Cochrane sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee.

16. Ket-Bing Yong sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west
Ahwatukee.

ATTACHMENT B

17



17. Heath Crossland sent an email in support of funding for a new fire and EMT station in west 
Ahwatukee. 

18. Annette Holmes sent an email in support of funding for a new fire station in zip code 85045. 

19. Shengmin Wen sent an email in support of funding for a traffic light at the intersection of 
Desert Foothills Parkway and South Marketplace Way, as well as a new fire and EMT 
station in west Ahwatukee.  

20. Gerry Dippe sent an email in support of funding to establish a dog park at Granada Park.  

21. Jared Luttrell sent an email in support of funding to make improvements to the Laveen Area 
Conveyance Channel (LACC).  

22. Ali Hameed sent an email in support of funding to repair the LACC. 

23. Abrar Gadoush sent an email in support of funding to repair the LACC. 

24. Michael Abegg sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

25. Frank Dever sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

26. Tammy Menjiver sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

27. Angel Porchas sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

28. Tony Sample sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

29. Rebecca Parrera sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space. 

30. Kristen Browne sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

31. Margaret Shalley sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space. 

32. Diana Aspresa sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space. 

33. Jennifer Tieman sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

34. Dean Chiarelli sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space.  

35. Matt Rysdyk sent an email in support of funding for the Estrella Civic Space. 

36. Brenda Thomson sent an email in support of funding for the Arizona Jewish Historical 
Society and the project to build the Holocaust Education Center in Downtown Phoenix.  

37. Brett Berger sent an email in support of funding to add pickleball courts at Desert Foothills 
Park.  

38. Slade E. Smith sent an email is opposition to the $7 million allocated to Heat Resiliency in 
the current bond recommendation and believes that the amount needs to be increased due 
to Phoenix’s severe and worsening urban heat island effect. 

39. Jillian Donegan in support of funding for the Garment League. 

40. Donna Williams sent an email in support of full funding for the Children’s Museum of 
Phoenix Expansion.  

18



41. Nick Reed sent an email in support of funding for the Children’s Museum of Phoenix 
Expansion.

42. Allison Otu sent an email in support of full funding for the Children’s Museum of Phoenix 
Expansion.

43. Colin Seale sent an email in support of full funding for the Children’s Museum of Phoenix 
Expansion.

44. Jaered B. Werre sent an email in support of adding solar powered charging stations and 
more public restroom availability around the city.

45. Daniel Clark sent an email in support of all sustainability and homelessness programs 
identified in the GO Bond.

46. Sara Richter sent an email in support of funding the entire $5 million for Historic 
Preservation.

47. Mike Fornelli sent an email in support of funding for Expansion of The Parsons Center for 
Health and Wellness.

48. Tom Simplot sent an email in support of funding for Expansion of the Parsons Center for 
Health and Wellness.

49. Will Greene sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Transportation 2050 
Mobility programs and would like to see $1 million added for affordable housing and would 
like heat resiliency items funded.

50. Iris Oveido sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-Based 
Transportation Mobility programs.

51. Alejandro Oviedo-Wyke sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-
Based Transportation Mobility programs.

52. Kevin Leyva sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-Based 
Transportation Mobility programs.

53. Daniel Williams sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-Based 
Transportation Mobility programs.

54. November Masinelli sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-Based 
Transportation Mobility programs.

55. Connor sent an email in support of full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-Based 
Transportation Mobility programs.

56. Jessica Leach, Executive Director of the Southwest Center, provided letters in support of 
The Parsons Center for Health and Wellness from U.S. Senator Krysten Sinema and U.S. 
House Representative Ruben Gallego. The letters are attached.

57. Terry Benelli, Executive Director of LISC sent a letter in support of full funding for Vision Zero 
and Equity-Based Transportation Mobility programs. The letter is attached.

19



58. Cory B. Kincaid, President of Urban Phoenix Project Foundation sent a letter in support of
full funding for Vision Zero and Equity-Based Transportation Mobility programs. The letter is
attached.

Voicemail 
There were no voicemail comments. 

Social media statistics from Oct. 22 to Nov. 4, 2022 
6 City of Phoenix Facebook Posts 

 18 Likes
 2 Shares
 5 Comments
 700+ views

6 City of Phoenix Tweets (across two City accounts) 
 1,836 Views
 20 Likes
 4 Retweets
 0 Comments
 1,111 views

2 City of Phoenix YouTube Videos 
 500 views

Respectfully submitted, 

Kari Lambert 
Administrative Assistant I 

20



21



22



23



 

Local Initiatives Support Corporation  4520 N. Central Ave., #570, Phoenix, AZ 85012 • T 602.256.0015 • lisc.org 

 
 
 
 
November 7, 2022 

GOPHX 2023 GO Bond Program 
Executive Committee 

Dear Chairperson Harper, Streets & Storm Drainage Subcommittee Chair Martin, and Members of the Phoenix 
2023 GO Bond Program Executive Committee: 

On behalf of LISC Phoenix, I strongly urge you to vote to recommend to the Phoenix City Council fully-funded, life-
saving Vision Zero and Equity-Based Transportation Mobility programs through a 2023 General Obligation Bond 
package, as recommended by the Streets & Storm Drainage Subcommittee. 

These programs have the potential to save lives through the implementation of roadway safety countermeasures 
which address locations and behaviors related to fatal and serious injury accidents, as well as support historically-
disadvantaged communities in which quality access to safe transportation options is currently substandard or 
nonexistent. In addition, they will have the effect of creating more safe, holistic, and seamless connectivity to 
public amenities, workplaces, homes, schools, entertainment hubs, and other transportation facilities; and 
providing key infrastructure improvements which will directly and positively affect the livelihoods of some of the 
most vulnerable populations in the Phoenix Metro region. 

Bicycle and pedestrian safety measures have increasingly come into question as studies have shown more than 
100 pedestrians and cyclists die every year in vehicle-involved crashes in metro Phoenix. Despite efforts from some 
commuters to avoid certain areas, data indicates fatalities have occurred at hundreds of intersections across the 
region since 2010 on roads with bike lanes and sidewalks. According to the Maricopa Association of Governments, 
in 2019 there were 940 motor vehicle crashes involving bicycles which resulted in injury, 19 of which were fatal. 
For pedestrians, there were 1,251 which resulted in injury and 136 which were fatal that same year. Fatalities 
increased by 57% from 2009-2019; in 2020, motorist deaths in Phoenix increased 30% from 2019; and just in the 
first six months of 2021, four cyclists and 52 pedestrians were killed in traffic accidents alongside 58 motorists. 
More than 220 pedestrians were killed on Arizona roads in 2020, according to the National Highway Traffic Safety 
Administration, and the state had the sixth-highest pedestrian fatality rate, with about three pedestrian deaths per 
100,000 people. More must be done to not only help educate people, but create a built environment dedicated to 
increasing safety to bring those numbers down. 

Access to reliable, functional, safe, multi-modal, and above all else, equitable transportation options are crucial for 
at-risk populations and communities in need to thrive and meet livability demands brought on by increasingly-
limited resources due to financial constraints amidst economically challenging times. Now more than ever, public 
entities need to display the resolve and courage to take on the shared responsibility of providing the vital 
infrastructure to address these disparities and make up for past shortfalls. We at LISC Phoenix are a willing 
participant in this effort, but we cannot accomplish it without the partnership of the government sector. We 
believe the City of Phoenix's GO Bond Program has the potential to be a lifeline towards meeting these 
accessibility goals, and encourage you all to support the full funding of such life-saving programs as Vision Zero 
and Equity-Based Transportation Mobility to do so. 

Sincerely, 

 
 
Terry Benelli – Executive Director 
LISC Phoenix 

24



 

Nov 3, 2022 
 
GO Bond Executive Committee 
City of Phoenix 
200 W. Washington Street 
Phoenix, Arizona 85003 
 
 
Please Vote to Fully Fund Vision Zero and Equity Based Transportation Mobility 
 
 
Chairwoman Harper and members of the Committee, 
  
It is with great concern that I am writing you in regards the state of prioritization and funding that has 
been discussed in the most recent Executive Committee meeting on October 31. Contrary to the 
recommendations of the Streets and Storm Drainage subcommittee, and in direct opposition to the 
public comments and sentiments expressed in those hearings, there are drastic reductions being 
proposed to Vision Zero and Equity Based Transportation Mobility funding. I am writing you today to 
urge you to vote to fully fund both critical and lifesaving measures as part of the final recommendations 
for the bond. 
 
There can be no higher priority than reducing death in our community resulting from poorly designed 
and implemented infrastructure. This bond provides a rare opportunity to demonstrate a commitment 
to addressing this failure and is a suitable application of taxpayer funds sourced across the city. To 
prioritize infrastructure investments for newly built or unbuilt parts of the city while neglecting to fix 
existing life-threatening conditions for long-time residents is unjust. How much longer would you 
suggest these communities wait for these deadly streets to be fixed? And if a rare bond issuance is not 
the right time, just when is, and how much death must we endure to reach it? 
 
Of additional concern is the disingenuous way these prioritization changes have come about – ignoring 
the process and public input, robbing the community of its voice, and delegitimizing the work of those 
involved. The Streets and Storm Drainage subcommittee did its job. It made the hard calls on what to 
prioritize, what to phase, and what to fund. It did so openly and while receiving and listening to public 
input. By voting to fully fund Vision Zero and Equity Based Transportation Mobility the Executive 
Committee can demonstrate that it takes public input seriously, respects the processes communicated 
to the public for this bond issuance, and above all, takes the responsibility to prioritize human life over 
property seriously. 
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
      Cory B. Kincaid | President 

      
Urban Phoenix Project Foundation 
 

25


	GO Bond Executive Committee Agenda Packet for 11-14.2022.pdf
	APPROVED-20221114 Meeting Agenda.pdf

	2022-11-8-02_GO_Bond_Community_Feedback_Report.pdf



